I'ORM B10 (Official Form 10)(04/04)

UNiTeD StaTEs Banwrurrcy Court _Eastern

DisTriCT OF _Michgan

PROOF OF CLAIM

Name of Debtor
Oxford Automotive, Inc.

Case Number 04__74377

NOTE This form should not be used to make a claim for an admumstrative expense ansing after the commencement
A request for payment of an admistrative expense may be filed pursuant to 11 USC § 503

of the case

Name of Creditor (The person or other entity to whom the debtor owes
money or property)

X

Raymond Roy Cowen, Sr.

Name and address where notices should be sent 0
Serko & Simon LLP

ATIN: Jerome L. Hanifain

1700 Broadway, 31st Floor O

New York, New York 10019
212-775-0055

Telephone number

Check box 1f vou are aware that
anyone else has filed a proof of
claum relating to your claim  Attach
copy of statement grving
particulars

Check box 1f you have never
recetved any notices from the
bankruptcy court in this case
Check box 1f the address differs
from the address on the envelope
sent to you by the court.

Tus Spack 1s For Court Use ONLy

Account or other number by which creditor identifies debtor

Check here CIreplaces
if this claim

a previously filed claim, dated
) amends

1 Basis for Claim

B Goods sold m Retiree benefits as defined m 11 U S C § 1114(a)
U Services performed [ Wages, salaries, and compensatton (fill out below)
[0 Money loaned Last four digits of SS #
O Personal mjury/wrongful death Unpaid compensation for services performed
0 Tax
X Othey See-Attached Addendum - Attached Complaant — from to
= (date) (date)
2 Date debt was mcurred 3 If court judgment, date obtamed
4 Total Amount of Clamm at Tyme Case Filed $ Unligumdated Unliquadated
(unsecured) (secured) (prionty) (Total)

If all or part of your claim 1s secured or entitled to priority, also complete Item 5 or 7 below
[J Check this box 1t claim inciudes interest or other charges i addition to the principal amount of the claim Attach itermzed statement of all

interest or additional charges

5 Secured Claim
T Check this box 1f your claim 1s secured by collatera] (including a
right of setoff)
Brief Description of Collateral

0 Real Estate ] Motor vehicle
] Other

Value of Collateral  §

Amount of anearage and other charges at time case filed included in
secured claim 1f any §

6 Unsecured Nonpriority Claim $_Unliquidated

3 Attached
l%-)'c(lhec this box if a) there 1s no collateral or lien securing your
claim or b) your claim exceeds the value of the property securing 1t or
if ¢) none or only part of your claim 1s entitled to priority

7 Unsecured Priority Claum

[ Check this box 1f you have an unsecured ptiority claim

Amount entitled to prionty $
Specify the priority of the claim
Wages salanes, or comnussions (up to $4,925) * eamed within 90

days before filing of the bankruptcy petition or cessation of the
debtor s busimess whichever 1s earher 11U S C § 507(a)(3)

Contnibutions to an employee bencfit plan 11 US C § 507(a)(4)
Up to $2 225* of deposits toward purchase lease or rental of
property or services for personal family or householduse 11 USC
§ 507(a)(6)

Alumony maintenance or support owed to a spouse, former spouse
orchild 11 USC §507(a)(7)

] Taxes or penalties owed to governmental umts 11 US C § 507(a)(8)
[J Other Specify apphicable paragraph of 11 US C § 507(a)( )
*Amounis are subject to adjustment on 4/1/07 und every 3 ycars thereafter with
respect to cases commenced on or after the date of adyustment

0
O

O

8 Credits
this proof of claim

9 Supporting Documents

not available, explain If the documents are volumnous attach a summary

10 Date-Stamped Copv
addressed envelope and copy of this proof of claim

The amount of all payments on this claim has been credited and deducted for the purpose of making

Atrach copies of supporung documents such as promissory notes purchase
orders 1invoices 1temmzed statements of running accounts, contracts court judgments mortgages security
agreements and evidence of perfection of lien DO NOT SEND ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS If the documents are

To receive an acknowledgment of the filing of your claim, enclose a stamped self

THis Seack 1s FOrR CoUrT Use ONLY

FILED
JAN 27 2005

Date

01/07/2005

n and print the name and title oif any of the creditor
claim (attac

o £

BMC

Oxford Automotive Inc

or other person authorized to file

Penalty for presenmﬂfaudulenr clatim Fine of up t

$500‘0'()0 or wmprisonment for up to 5 years or both 18 USC

i -



SERKO & SIMON LLP
CUSTOMS & INTERNATIONAL TRADE LAW
1700 BROADWAY
31°%T FLOOR
NEW YORK N Y 10019

TEL 212 775 0055 £ MAIL serko simon@ecustoms law com
FAX 212 839 9103 INTERNET www cusioms law com

RE Oxford Automotive, Inc Litigation

e
The undersigned, Client, residing at 405 [ /[ We |4 Dy \re '7(7 7. w7 53
herebv retains Serko & Smmon LLP 1700 Broadway, 31% Floor, New Y ork, NY 10019, to
prosecute or adjust a claim for pecumiary, financial, or other damages includmg punrtive
damages ansing from the failure to tumely secure NAFTA-TAA certification for the Former
Emplovees of Oxford Automotive, Inc Argos Indiana Facility on or after December 4 2000
Said damages resulting from the negligent or intentionally tortious behavior of Oxford
Automotive, Inc , its Officers, Directors, and Employees past and present

The Chent hereby gives Serko & Simon LLP the exclusive right to take all legal steps to
enforce this claim through tnial settlement, and/or appeal Serko & Simon LLP shall have the
nght but not the obhigation to represent the Client on appeal

The Client has been specifically informed, and 1s aware, that Serko & Simon LLP 15
representing multiple clhients based on the same or simtlar cause of action The Client consents
to Serko & Simon LLP’s 1epresentation of multiple chents based on the same or sumilar cause of
action and waives all conflicts of mterest that mayv exist due to that 1epresentation

The Client accepts Serko & Simon LLP’s authority to negotiate a settlement on the
Chent s behalf that may be included as part of the settlement of all or most, of the same or
similar causes of action brought on behalf of Serko & Simon LLP’s other chents The Client
will have the opportunity to accept or decline a negotiaied settlement afler all details of the
proposed settlement of the Chent’s cause of action, and the details of the settlement of same or
similar causes of action brought on behalf of Serko & Simon LLP’s other clients have been
disclosed to the Client

In consideration of the services rendered and to be rendered by Serko & Simon LLP, the
Chent agrees to pay Serko & Simon LLP and Seiko & Simon LLP 1s suthorized to retam out of
moneys that may come 1nto its hands by reason of the above claim

Thurty three and one-third percent (33 1/3 *4) of the total sum recovered, whether
recoveted by suit, settlement or otherwisc

Such percentage shall be computed on the total sum recovered for the Client Afler
deduction of such amount from the total sum recovered, a further deduction will be made for
Serko & Simon LLP’s expenses and disbursements for experl testimony, investigative or other
services properly chargeable to the enforcement of the claim or prosecution of the action In



computing the fee, the costs as taxed, mcluding interest upon a judgment, shall be deemed part of
the amount recovered

If the cause of action 1s settled by Client without the consent of Serko & Simon LLP,
Chent agrees to pay Serho & Smmon LLP the above percentage of the full amount of the
settlement for the benefit of Chent, to whomever paid or whatever called Serko & Simon LLP
shall have, 1n the altemative, the option of seeking compensation on a quantum meruit basis to be
determined by the court In such circumstances, the court would determine the fair value of the
service Serko & Simon LLP shall have, in addition, Serko & Simon LLP s taxable costs and
disbursements In the event the Client 1s represented on appeal by another attorney, Serko &
Simon LLP shall have the option of seeking compensation on a guantum meruit basis to be
determined by the court

In the event of a dispute relating to our fees, you may have the right to arbitration of the
dispute pursuant to Part 137 of the Rules of the Chuef Admunustrator of the Courts of New York
State a copy of which will be furnished to you upon request

Cliept

Daed /~/D -0+
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Dav.d T Hapxrres




STATE OF INDIANA, MARSHALL COUNTY

MARSHALL CIRCUIT COURT

Topp E ABROTT, DAVID M ABRAMS, SR
LYDALL BRENT ARVLN,
CHARLES KEVIN BAILY.JR ,

GARY DraN BAILEY JOSEPH R BAILEY
LtNDON LLON BAILLY, TERRY A BAIRD,
RICKY GENE BAKER, LLC EDGAR BECKER,
DAVID ALLEN BELILES, GALC H BENDER,
TmvoTHY DAVID BENEDICT,

VERNON FRANZ BIBER

JOHN A. BiaGS, THOMAS D BIGLEY

BrucL LANE BOWLN, RICHARD LEE BOWEN,
JErRRY D BRADLEY, MICHALL P BRADSTRELT
DoNaLD R. BRADY, TERRY RAY BRASH,
ERNLST R BREWLR, EUGENE BREWER
FREDDIEE BRICKEY, FLINT A BROWN,
HAROLD EDWARD BROWN RODNEY ] BRYANT
KECNAN ALLEN BUCHANAN

TrROY W AYNE BUCHANAN, RICHARD RAYMOND
BUNCH DANNY MARK BUNN,

DavID A CALHOUN, DLNNIS LEE
CALHOUN DENNIS WiILLIAM CALHOUN,
DouGLas LYNN CALHOUN JETFERY

LynnN CALVERT, RONALD D CARR,
DouGLAs H CASSEL, GLEN ALTON CATTIN,
CLirrORD CaUDILL LARRY THOMAS
CHARD, FIERBCRT B CLARK DALEL
CLcMONS DANNY L CLFMONS MICHAEL
RaY CLEMONS, Creil REX COCHRAN,
DARREL WAYNE COLE,

SHer! L CoLEMAN DaNILL LEE COLLINS
DANNY JOE CONFER, KEVIN L CONLEY,
KevIN B CORRELL, ROBEPTL CouCH
RAYMOND ROY CowEN SR LINDA KAY
CRAFT RONALD RAY CRAIT, STEVEN DEAN
CRISPCN, JEFTRY LYNN CRISSINGER,

LARRY WAYNE CROW SHIRLEY L CROW,
FREDDIE A Davis JANELLC Davis

LyLe DraN Davis, WILLIAM EARL DEATON
JAMES ANDREW DENISTON,

DaviD WAYNE DEPO* ROBERT EUGENE
DETWILER, TiIMOTHIY B DCTWILER
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FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
Cause No 50C01-0410-PL-00024
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RICHARD DFAN DEWITT, ToM LEE DIFTL,
PHIL A DONALDSON, BRIAN SCOT DOTY,
DaRLA JEAN DOWNEY, JAMES DOWNEY,
JoHN W DUDGEON JiM EDWARD DUFF
RUSSELLD DUGAN,
GORDON N EASTRRDAY SR GARY
WAYNE EASTWOOD, RANDY WILLIAM
TAIRCIHLD, BRIAN CHARLES FALLSTICK,
STEPHEN THOMAS FALLSTICK TIMOTHY
ROY FISHBURN, THOMAS C FISHER, II,
REXx A FiSHER, JR DLANROY FITZPATRICK,
GARY A FLAGG, CLAYTON LEE FLOSFNZIER,
DEevon Ei1 SON FLOSENZIER, JACK LrE
FLOSENZIER JIMMIE FREELS TIMOTHY W
FRELSE, RICHARD G FrY, ADAJ FUGATE,
FRANKFUGATL JR , RONALD G FURNIVALL,
RIiCHARD EDWARD GaLL, RICK LEC
GEARHART BRIAN KEITH GERALD,
DAvVID JAMECS GREER, CHRISTAL KAY
GREIVES DONALD JAMES GROLEAU
ESTATE Or LARRY A GROSSMAN,
JEFTREY W GUNTER,
MARK ALAN HANCOCK KAREN RENEE
HARDESTY DONALD LEE HARPCR,
DaviD THOMAS HARRIS Jon MICHAEL
HARRISON, BRYAN MICHALL HART,
CHARLES HART, HOWARD R HART ParL
TROY HART STCVEN JARREL HARTLE
THOMAS ] HATHAWAY DAvID LEE
HALTERMAN RODNEY EUGENE HAWLLY,
STEPHCN RUSSEL HAZFN JOHN W
HEDRICK, JAMES PATRICK HENNLY,
DaNIEL LEE HILEMAN RICK ALLEN Hiscy
Jay C Hg MaRk EDWARD HORRM AN,
BovyD W HOLLABAUGH DAVID L
HOLLAND MICHAEL DOUGLAS HOLLAND,
LOWLLL FREDERICK HOLLAR,
MARK STEVCN HOLLOWAY
MARY JaANE HOt MCS SCOTT G HOLMES
STEWART ALLAN HOOVER, TINAM HORN
JAcQUELIN LEE HOuIN CLAYTON HOWARD,
DAvID WAYNE HOWARD RANDOLPH HOWARD
Rick R HOwWARD, S7EVER Howagrp,
ToDD ALLEN HOWaRD CLAUDE GRANT HOWELL
JoscpH THOMAS HozZFy ROBERTJ
HunLEY DoNALD R HUNT, YVONNE IONE

[
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INGLE, MICHAEL ALLAN INGLEHEARN,
ROBERT EUGENE [sOM, JIM M JACOBSON,
CHARLES EDWARD JENSEN,
MARLIN JEROME JENSCN
PHILLIP LANE JOHNSON, ROGER JOHNSON
BARBARA JEAN JOHNSON/MILLS, DaviD R
Jongs, HERBERT LEE KAJER, ROBERT
HERBERT KARTES MARK SCOTT KINGSBURY,
WILLIAM Jack KIrBY, CLAUDE ROBFRT KITL,
MicHALL KNEZEVICH, JR , ERIC MICHAEL KOCBBE,
LARRY STEVEN KOKTA, RICLIARD R KOWAL
KEVIN G LAMB, LENNY RAY LAMBECRT, ANTHONY
PATRICK LARDINC, ADAM C LEAZLNBY
DEenNIs LEMLER, Davio M LEMPECK],
MAURICE E LESLEY, HAZEL RONEE LETT
RicKY Scotr Lowis, GARy LcE
LOCKRIDGE JR , MARK ALLEN LOEFFLER,
BIRCH FRANKLIN LONG ESTATE OF RICHARD
A Lowry DANIEL W Lucas, DONALD Lrr
LuTz, TopD E MAISEROULLE, BRAD MANNS
JOE MANNS MARK A MANNS, ROBERTD
MAPPIN MANFORD H MATHIAS JAY WALTFR
McCALL, PAUL DAVID MCCARTHY,
Lewis EUGENE MCCRAMMER, DAVID
L MCINTIRE, MARY LOUISE MCINTIRE,
DaNIEL JOSEPH MCKEE, ROSS THEODORE
MIDDLETON, JR., CRAIG EUGENE MILLER,
DANIEL TosEPL MILLER, DONNIC MILLER,
ERIC KENT MILLER, ROGER MILLER,
Don W MILLS, ROBERT L MOLDEN, JR.,
DOUGLAS MITCHELL MOORE GERALD
DEVON MOORE, THOMAS MILLARD
MoORTON JAMES KIRK MOYER,
ERIC SHANNON MURPHY RICK L MYERS,
DENNIS EARL MYGRANT, RODNEY L
MYGRANT TED W M MYGRANT TERRY A
NELSON RICHARD A. NEWBERG, PATRICK
JONATHAN NICKLAUS, JACOB ALLEN
NOFTSGER, CLINTON BLADLEY NUCKLES,
Kevin LEE OGLE, SCOTT EDWARD OGLE
Vicky L OVERMYER, BOBBY LEE PATTON
THOMAS W PAUGH, DARREN FAY PEGG STEVEN
Louis PELTZ TERESA ANN PETERSON JOSEPH
ANDREW PHILLI®S MICHAEL R PIPPENGCR. DALE
W Pore DEBBIE SUE POWELL, SCOT1 ALLEN
PowrLL TerPREY KYLE PRATER, CLAY
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JEROME PUGH CRAIG ALLAN PUGH
CrLAvERTL QUIMBY, MARGURILCT CLEO
QuimBY, JERRY D REDLIN JEFFREY L RECD
RANDY A RCUTEBUCH, JACOB L RLYNOLDS,
Topp A RHYMER, ANDREW JOHN RIALE,
RANDALL EUGENE RINGER, [RITZH
RisNER DaviD C RITCHIF, MARCUS A
RITIER, RICHARD ALBERT RITTER JR
PATRICK R ROARK, CLAUDETTE MARIE
ROBERTS, GARY WAYNE ROGLRS,
Jon MrrcHELL ROMIG, CHARLES ROBERT ROSE,
JounB ROSE, JR JAMES W ROWE, ROBERT
L RuGGLES, LubwIG CARL RUSSEL,
ANNETTE L RUTLEDGE LARRY RUSSFLL
SANDERSON II, DAVID W SAYGERS KENNETIL
LEE SCHERBING, SHELBY RAYMOND SCHNEIDER,
DAVID LEE SCHRIMSHER, MATTHEW JAY SEF,
ADAIR MICHAEL SEIDELMANN, ANTHONY LEE
SHATTTR BRIAND SHiPPY DAVID
WILLIAM SMITH, KENNETII MICHAEL
SMITH, MELODY LYNN SMITH RUSSCLL
HOMER SMITH, JOSEPH E SNYDER, DAVID
JAMES SOLOMON, EDWARD ] SPARKS
JESSIE RAY SPARKS, ARTHUR RAY SPENCFR JR,
LONNIE DEC STEVENS, PHILIP N STCVENS,
STANLEY RYAN STCVENS, JEFFREY L STONE,
KENT SAMUEI STRANG WEINDELL WADF
STUBER JOHN WILLIAM SUSITS, DAVID
EoWARD SUTTON, BRAD L. TaM, BRETTL
Tam AMBER TAYLOR DONALD F TESSNER,
ToM MICHAEL THIBEAULT, HOPE THOMAS,
ANTHONY WILLIAM THOMPSON JEREMY L
TOWNSLND, TONY L TRIPLET, MICHALL
PAUL TROSPER, MARK A TURNPALGH,
MiICHAEL LEROY TURNPAUGH STEVF
KENT TURNPAUGH LLOYDE ULERICK,
SHERRY LAVONE VACA, FLOYD E VaN Scoy JR
TIMOTHY R WAGNER, LARRY DEAN WAGONER
DONALD LEE WALLACE [ BRUCL E
WALTON, TERRY LEE WALTZ, TuDY KAY
WARREN, RICHARD NEAL WARREN
Joun L WHITE, ROB T WHITE, THOMAS
JOSLPH WHITE RICKY DEAN WILBURN
DANIEL JAMES WILLIAMS MICHAEL
SHAWN WILLIAMS TRACY RENEE
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WiLLIAMS, JETFREY DEAN WILSON,
ROBERTE WISCR, CHARLES D YOUNG,

Plaintiffs,
!

OXFORD AUTOMOTIVE, INC , a corporation
and STEVEN M ABELMAN,

JOHN W POTTER, AURELIAN BUKATKO
TIM GARGAROQO, LARRY C CORNWALL,
DENNIS BEMIS, MICHAEL J HARTT,
ROBERT L CHIARAVALLI AND
BENEDICT C UBAMADU, each ndividuals,

Defendants

L_/v\— N’ S Mt S Nt N’ N’ N Nt Nt e N N N’

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT RE FRAUD, CRIMINAL
CONVERSION, TREBLE DAMAGES
AND ATTORNEYS FEES WITH JURY DEMAND

For then first amended complaint plamntiffs allege as follows

SUMMARY OF THE ACTION

1 This case involves the wholesale demal of federal and state benefits to production
workers thrown out of work at Oxford Automotive Inc s plant m Argos, Indsana Defendants
are responsible for the plamtffs’ losses of benefits by a policy and program of repeated hies to
federal and state agencies The story requires some bachground

2 In order to soften the mmpact of lost American jobs when a plant like Oxford s
closes operations and moves etther to Mexico o1 Canada as part of the North American Free
Trade Agreement ('NAFTA j, Congress authorized supplemental unemployment ietraining,
relocation and other benefits for U S worhers rendered jobless because of such a move

3 However, those suppiemental benefits will not be granted by the U'S Department
of Labor and Indiana s Department of Workforce Development if the employer tells the

government that its employees loss of work was not due to a shift of production to a plant across



the bordet

4 In this case, n fate 2000 Oxford Automotive, Inc began the process of moving
Argos plant equipment to a biand new operation m Ramos Arnizpe, Mexico, some 190 nules from
the United States border, m order to serve a recently constructed General Motors auto assembly
plant nearby 1n Ramos Anzpe

5 By the end ot January 2001, Oxford had moved some 60 truckloads of heavy
equipment, which constituted the Argos plant s major production line, fiom the Argos
mstaliation and was re-establishing 1t m 1ts new Mexican plant

6 Meanwhile, having decided to shut down the Argos Indiana ptant Oxford began
laving oft 1ts Argos employees 1n large numbers m October 1999 It did not complete that
process however until approximately June 2001, when 1t officially shut the Argos plant

7 Throughout this years-long process ot shutting down Argos, 1o order to use the
plant s major production equipment 1n Mexico, Oxford and its executives repeatedly stated to
state and federal officials tnrough as late as October 21 2002,(1f not later) that the equipment
moved to Mexico was not bewng used Because according to the defendants, the machimery had
not been used, 1ts shift to Mexico could not be the basis for the Argos production workers 1o
apply for and receive the specral NAFTA-affected unemployment and retrainng benefits
mentioned earlier

8 By so actmg Oxford and several of its execunves knew that the company and
themselves personally would (and did) cause both the state and federal gov emments to withhold
the specsal unemployment and retraming benefits to which each Argos worler was entitled had
Oxford and 1its sxecutives told the truth

9 As a direct result of the defendants pattern of repeated and conscious
mistepresentations to the government, thev caused plamuffs to lose permanently some of the
special benefits they would have been entitled to and, as to other such benefits suffer a delay of

some 2 veais and 10 months m recetving them

10 It was only afte~ extensive itigation 1 the Umnted States Court of International



Tiade that the United States Department of Labor and the Indiana Department of Workforce
Development released benefits to which plamtiifs had qualified years betore
11 As a direct result of defendants campaign and policy of lying to federal and state
government officials, plamtffs have suffered serous current and future econonuc loss as well as
substantial menial distress
PARTIES
12 Plaintiffs are former emplovees of defendant Oxford Automotive, Inc (hereafter
“Oxford™) and/or 1ts subsidianies, including the Estates ot Larry Grossman, Richard A Lowry,
wio though tformer employees of Oxford are deceased
13 Oxford s a corporation established pursuant to the laws of the State of Michigan
with 1ts headquarters mamntamed m the State of Michigan  Oxford 1s a “Tier I” global suppher of
metal components assemblies mechanisms and modules used by original equipment
automotive manufacturers, such as General Motors Corporation, Samurn a division of General
Motors Corporanon, and the Ford Motor Company
14 Among tts other operations, Oxford currently mamtamns plants m Corydon,
Inaiana and m Gieencastle, Indiana
15 Unul May 13 2004 defendant Oxford maintained a production facility in the
Repubiic of Viexico at Boulevard Santa Mana 1501 Frace Industrial Santa Mana Ramos
Arzpe Coahuila, Mexico 25900
16 The individual defundants, each present o1 former officers, directors and/o1
members of Oxfoid s management, mnclude the following
(a) Steven M Abelman, who served Oxford as President and Cluef Executive
Officer from May 1997 10 June 2001
(b) John W Potter who served Oxford as President and Chuef Execunve
Officer from June 2001 to Januarv 2004,
) Aurelian Buhatako who served Oxford as Executive Vice President and

Chiet Financ al Officer from June 2000 to Julv 2002 and as Semor Vice



(d)

®

€4

(h)

8))

President and Chuef Financial Officer of such defendant from June 1999 to
June 2000,

Tim Gargaro, who served Ox{ord as Executive Vice President and Chiet
Financial Officer trom July 2002 to June 2003,

Larry C Cornwall, who served Oxford as Executive Vice President from
May 2000 to May 2001, as Senior Vice President Global Business
Development from June 1999 to Mav 2000, and Semor Vice President
Sales and Engmeenng from May 1997 to June 1999

Dennis Bemis who served Oxford as Semor Vice President of Human
Resources from August 2002 to date,

Michael J Hartt, who served Oxtord as Corporate Director of Human
Resources dunng the time-penod relevant to this action,

Robert L Chiaravalli, who served Oxford as Vice President of Human
Resources and Chief Labor Counsel during the time-peniod relevant to this
action, and

Benedict C Ubamadu who served Oxford as Generat Motors Corp

busiess account manager from at least October 2002 untif 2004

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

17 Thus Court has junsdiction ovet this Iitigation pursuant 10 Indiana Rules of Tral

Procedure Rule 4 4(A)(1)-(5) because defendanis have conducted business 1 the State of

Indiana, have caused personal mnury by acts done n the State of Indiana have caused personal

mjury ov acts done outside of the State of Indiana whise regularly doing business in the State of

Indiana and as to defendant Oxford, own and use 1eal pioperty n the State of Indiana

18 Venue 1s properlv laid i this Courr because many of the acts and transactions by

plainuffs and defendants, and the hamn suffered py plantiffs, occurred 1n Marshall County, State

of Indiana



FACTS

1 Oxford’s Argos, Indiana Facility

19 Lobdell-Emery Mfg Co bult a plant for the manufacture of automobuile parts in
Argos Indiana that started production m 1977

20 The Lobdell-Emerv Mfg Co Argos, Indiana manufactunng facility produced
metal stamped and welded automebile parts for General Motors and the Foid Motor Company

21 In 1997, Lobdell-Emery Mfg Co sold us assets mncluding 1ts Argos Indiana
manufactunng facihity to Oxford

22 After Oxford purchased the Argos, Indiana facility tt offered numerous mcentives

to Argos employees to ncrease plant output, which the employees did to Oxford s benefit

I Oxfo1d’s Ramos Arizpe, Mexico Facility

23 Beginning on or about September 1998 Oxford began construction of a new
production facility in Ramos Anzpe Mexico

24 The process of constructing an automotive parts production facility, such as the
facthity at Ramos Anzpe, Mexico, begins with planning and design many months before actual
construction begms

25 As part of the pre-construcnion planmng process for Oxford’s new plant n
Mewico, a number of Oxford personnel were wnvolved 1n determining what equipment would be
mstalied at the new facility and made determunations as to the source of that equipment

26 Ontord, m combmation with Steven Abelman Awielian Bukatalo, and Larry C
Cornwall, supervised the planming for construction of], and placement of menufacturing
equipment at, Onford s Ramos Anzpe Mexico facility

27 Essentially, Oxford duplicated Argos’ manufactunng capacity in Rarmos Anzpe
For exampie the size and dimenstons of a ‘press pit 1n an automotive parts production facuity

are determuned by the dimensions of the maclunery to be placed within the specific “piess pit.°



Duning the pertod from September 1998 to February 2000, Oxford built into 1ts Ramos Arizpe
Mexico plant a “piess pit” approximately 200 feet long, 30 feet wide, and 30 feet deep, identical
1n s1ze to the “press pit’ located at the Oxford A1gos Indiana facility, which facihity was sull in
operation at the tume the press pit was peing built in Ramos Anzpe, Mexica

28 Onxford’s Form 10K, filed with the U S Securifies and Exchange Commussion on
June 20, 2000, states regarding the Ramos Arizpe Mcxico facility, that “Plant rationahization
has allowed tor the transfer of equipment already owned to the facuity ” The equipment

“already owned * was the equipment at Argos

IIf  The 180-Inch Press Line

29 Though the 180-inch press hine that was located at Oxford’s Argos Indiana
facility was referred to asa line "1n tact 1t consisted of a senes of verv large machines, the
entirety of which was worth millions of dollais  They consisted of five (5) 1500-ton Verson
Presses six (6) SIS Path Finder Transfer units and one (1) metal blank destacking machine The
resulting line was apnroximately 200 feet long, ranged m height up to 60 teet, was approximately
20-30 feet wide, and extended 1n places 30 feet down nto the press pits m which 1t was nstalled
Iv Oxford’s Argos, Indiana 186-Inch Press Line Is Sent to

Ramos Arizpe, Mexico Facility

30 On or about August 1, 2000, authonzation from Oxford s corporate headquarters
was pending to dismantle and ship the Argos, Indiana 180-inch press line to the new plant at
Ramos Arnizpe, Mexice (Formor Employees of Oxford dutomotve Inc v United States U S
Court of International Trade No 01-00433 Public Admumustrative Record [heteafter referred to
as Oxford Record "] p 46}

31 However, on o1 about September 2000, at 4 time when the Argos press hine had
been partially drsassembled for 1ts ransfer to Mexico, Or ford received from Ford Motor Co an

‘ off-load job for Ford Focus rear doors that required the use of the 180-mnch press ine ar the

10



Argos facihity

32 As a result, on or about September 6, 2000, 2 Capital Appropnation Request was
submutted to Oxford s headquarters from the Argos acthity (Oxford Record I, p 48) asking for
some $60,000 ¢ to reassemble the 180-inch press line This would allow Argos to run an
emergency offload for the Ford Focus front and rear outer door skins * (/d)

33 The Capital Appropnauon Request went on to state that “{tlhe 180 [inch] press
line was being disassembled for transfer to anothe” Oxford Automotive plant m Mexico ™ (Id )

34 In late September tnrough October 2000, Oxford s Argos Indiana employees,
including plamntiffs in this action re-assembled the partially dismantled 180-mch press hine
located at the Oxford Argos, Indiana plant and then worked in shifts around the clock to satisfy
the Ford Motor Company “offload” job

35 Havmg ecmpleted the Ford Motor Co  off-load’ job in November 2000 Oxford
agam ordered the Argos 180-mch press line wo be dismantied

36 On or about Decemoer 5 2000 and continuing through January 2001, the
dismantled 180-mch press hine was shipped from defendant Oxford s Argos, Indiana facility to
Oxrord s Ramos Anzpe Mexico facility by means of more than siaty (60) separate tractor trailer
truckloads a process that alone cost several hundieds of thousands ot dollars

37 In January 2001, Jeff Mason at that time a Vice President of defendant Oxford
stated to representatives of the plaintiffs that with respect to the 180-mnch press line Oxford was
transferring from Argos to Mevico Oxford had plenty of work for the line i Mexico but had no
work for 1t 1n the United States

38 In fact on wnformation and belief, from January 2001 until Oxford sold 1ts Ramos
Anzpe, Mexico plant in May 2004, 1t used the plant to produce automobile parts for General

Motors all procuction that could have been done and 1n earhier years had been done, m Argos

\Y Gxford Closes the Argos, Indiana Facility

39 Because of Oxford s decision to close the Argos plant and shift proguction to

1l



Ramos Arzpe, Mexica Oxford began large-scale layoffs at the Argos, Indiana facilitv

October 1999 that proceeded through fune 2001, when 1t permanently closed 1ts Argos

nstallation

VI Oxford Comnuts Itself to Cooperate with State or Federal Agencies
Assisting with Job Trainmg and Other Benefits

40 On or about June 2001 n connection with closure of the Argos tacility, Oxford
publicly commutted 1tself “to cooperate with any state and/or federal agency which would assist

the emplovees with job training or any other benefits the employees would be entitled to

VII  Oxford Sent Former Argos, Indiana Employees to the Ramos Arizpe, Mexico
Facility to Train Mexican Employees on the 180-Inch Press Line

41 Duning the penod March 2001 to July 2002 Oxf{oid sent a number of then current
as well as earlier terminated Argos employees to the Ramos Arnizpe, Mexico facility to assist 1
setting-up and placing mto production at the Ramos Arizpe, Mexico facility the very same 180-
mch press hine that had been moved from Argos, Indiana

42 As part of then work for Oxford at its Ramos Arizpe, Mexico facility then-
current and termmated Argos employees tramned Oxford’s new Mexican employees on how to

run the 180-inch press Line transferred from the Argos Ind:ana plant

VIHI The NAFTA-TAA Petition

43 Meanwhile pack on December 4 2000 plamtffs’ representatives {iled a petiion
requesting certification for “NAFTA-Transitonal Adjustment Assistance, pursuantto 19 US C
§ 2331 see, Ind Code, § 22-4-41-1, et seq , (hereatter NAFTA-TAA ) with the Indiana
Department of Work{orce Development on behalf of then-current and former emplovees of
Oxford s Argos Indiana facihity (Oxford Record ! p 2)

44 Ceruficanon for NAFTA-TAA venefits by the U S Department of Labor

establishes ehgibihty ot workers who have lost their jobs either due to a shift 1n production to



Menico or Canada, or due to mcreased umports of competitive products from Mexico or Canada
to apply for and recerve extended unemployment payments, job trammng and job search and
relocation allowances

45 Tne NAFTA-TAA petition alleged that jobs had been lost at Oaford s Argos,
Indiana facility due to a shift in production to Mexico (Oxford Record [ p 2)

46 The NAFTA-TAA petition stated that the “‘180-inch Automated Press Line for

Car side panels (Saturn Sedan & Saturn Station wagon/Corvette tunnel) had been affected by

the shift m producuon to Mex.co by having been sent to Mexice (Id)

47 The pet:tion included as an attachment a memorandum dated August | 2000,
fiom Micnael McCord-Kurz (at that time Oxford s Argos facility plant manager) to the effect

that authonzation was bemg sought to move the 180-inch press kine to Mexico  (Oxford Record

Latp 4)

IX The Indiana Department of Workforce Development and the U S Department of
Labor Imtial Favestigation

48 On December 28 2000, the U S Departument of Labor published notice of its
investigation based on the Argos, Indiana plant employees NAFTA-TAA petition i the Federal
Register (Oxford Record I pp 5-9 65 Fed Reg 62,396, 82,399)

49 Pursuant to the procedures mandated by law for determining eligibility for
NAFTA-TAA certification (19 US C § 2331(b)}) the Oxford employees’ petition underwent
preiuminarv review by the indiana Department of Workforce Development the designated
representanve of tne State m which the Argos workers were located

X Defendants’ First Set of False Statements to the Indiana Department
of Workforce Development

30 Between December 4, 2000 and December 21 2000 the Indiana Depaimment of

Workforce Development obtained mformation from defendant Onfoid regarding the employees

NAFTA-TAA-petrrion



51 Ou mformation and belief during the Department of Worktorce Development’s
mvestigation 1 violauon of {8 US C § 1001 and Ind Code § 35-44-3-4(a)(4) Oxford
submitted matenally false mformation to the Department to the effect that although a 180-inch
press hne was buing moved from Oxford’s Argos, Indiana facility to Oxford’s Ramos Anizpe

Mexico facility, Oxford had no plans to put that line 1nto production m Mexico

X!  The Indiana Department of Workforce Development Makes 2 Prehminary
Negative Determuination on the NAFTA-TAA Petttion

52 On or about December 21, 2000, the Indiana Department of Workforce
Development, based in part upon the matenally false information provided to 1t by defendants,
1ssued a negative preliminary determmanion on the NAFTA-TAA peution {Qxford Recard I,
Table of Contents ‘Tax of December 21, 2000, to Department of Labor (DOL), Trade
Adjustment Assistance Office (DTAA) 'rom the Indiana Department of Workforce
Development Transmitting the NAFTA-TAA Preliminary Finding and Confidental Data
Information for Oxford Automotive, Argos, Indiana NAFTA-4357 )

XIiI  Defendants’ Sccond Set of False Statements to the US Department of Labor
53 Upon mformation and belief, on or avout January 4, 2001, defendant Michael J
Hartt, 1n his capactty as Corporate Drrector of Human Resources for Onford with the
hnowledge and at the direction of, defendants Steven M Abelman Aurehan Bukatako, and
Larry C Comwall 1n violation of 18 US C § 1001 and Ind Code § 35-44-3-4(a)(4), sent a letter
to the U S Department of Labor 1iegarding the transfer of equipment from Oxford’s Argos
Tacility to the Ramos Atizpe, Mexico facility  In that letter Oxford,
(@) informed the Department that the 180-inch press hine was being moved
trom defendant Oxford s Argos, Indiana facthitv to Oxford s Ramos
Anzpe, Mexico facihity: and
(b)  faisely mformed the Department that Onford had no plans to put the 180-

mch press line 1mto producnon at the Ramos Arizpe, Meaico facilitv

14



(Oxford Record [ Table of Contents Letter of January 4, 2001, to Anisha Gniffith Investigator
DTAA, DOL From Mr Mchael ] Hartt, Corporate Director Oxford Automotive, Providing
Addinonal Intormauon Regardng the Transfer of Equipment from the Argos Faulity )

54 On January 24, 2001, the U S Department of Labor’s Certifying Officer Linda G
Poole relying on the false statements i Michael | Hartt’s January 4 2001 letter, signed a
*Negative Determuination Regarding Ehgibihity to Apply for NAFTA-Transitional Adjustment
Assistance, * referring to defendants” false assertions there had been no shift in production to
Mexico and that “[a}ithough some of the machinery from the Argos plant has been moved to
Mexico and other foreign locations, the machinery 1s idle ” (Oxford Record I pp 18-20)

Emphasts added)

53 The mutial prelimunary determunation by the Indiana Department of Workforce
Development and the final determination by the U S Department of Labor wete based on and
were the direct result of, the false intormation and statements referred to above because, during
December 2000-January 2001, Oxford had in fact transported the Argos equipment to Ramos

Anzpe for the very purpose ot shifting production to Mexico

XiIf The U S Department of Labor’s Imtiaf Demal of NAFTA-TAA Certification

56 The Department of Labor denied the NAFTA-TAA Petition as of January 26
2001 (Oxford Record I, p 26) The Department pubhshed in the Federal Register official
notice of the demal of Plamntiffs petition on February 20, 2001 (Oxford Record 1, pp 21-24, 66
Fed Reg 10,916-17)

XIv  Piantitfs’ Representative Requests that the U S Department of Labor Reconsider
its Denal of NAFTA-TAA Certification

57 Meanwhile on Febiuary 1, 2001, plamnaffs’ representative tequested that the

Department of Labor reconsider its derual of the Argos emplovees’ pention for NAFTA-TAA



certification, ndicating the following

Oxford Automotive built a plant in Ramos, Mexico a few years
ago and built press pits to fit our 180-line In your letter it staies
the customer made the decision to take back production. This 1s
not true  Oxford Automotive made the decision to move these jobs
1o other Oxford facilities (with customer appioval), so they could
take our 180-mch Ime to Mexico  The machinery 1s idle because
Ford Motor Company paid to re-assemble and disassemble this
Iime It1s disassembled now and 1n route to Mexico Jeff Mason,
Vice President of Oxford Automotive told the Bargaining
Commutree of UAW Local 2088 that they had plenty of work for
this e 1n Mexico, but had no work for 1t i the States

(Oxford Record [, p 45)

XV  The US Department of Labor Denies Reconsideration

38 The U S Department of Labor denied the request for reconsideration of the
NAFTA-TAA petition on Apnil 30 2001 (Oaford Record 1 pp 49-51)

59 In 1ty ‘Notice of Neganve Determination Regarding Apphication for
Re.onsideration ’ the Department ot Labor stated that mtormation regarding the transfer of the
180-inch press Line to Mexico had been previously considered and wrate “the Department
found [in the mittal investigation] that some of the machinery was sent to Mexico but 1t was
not being used ” (Onford Record [ pp 52-53 66 Fed Reg 23 732, (May 9 2001)) (emphasis
added)

XVi Plamtiffs’ Representative Challenges the US Department of Laber's Denial of
NAFTA-TAA Certification at the US Court of International Trade

60 Plamntitfs representative requested that the United States Court of International

Trade review the Department of Labor’s demial of plaintitfs' NAFTA-TAA petition on June 13,
200t

16



XVII The First Remand to the US Department of Labor

61 Thereafter, the Department of Labor moved for a remand m order that the
Department might reconsider the NAFTA-TAA petitior a motion the U S Court of
International Trade granted on August 28 2001

62 Upon remand the U S Departinent of Labor exchanged e-mails with Oxford
mquring whether Oxford had unported automobile parts from Mexico or Canada that were hike
or directly competitive with those produced at defendant Oxford’s Argos, Indiana plant
(Former Employees of Oaford Automotive Inc v United Stares, L S Court of International
Trade No 01-004353, First Supplemental Public Admumnistrative Record [hereafter referred to as
“Oxford Record II"Ip %)

63 On October 19 2001 the U S Departiment of Labor continued the demal of the
NAFTA-TAA petition 1n 2 “Notice of Negative Determination on Remand” that mcluded the
tollowing ground which m tumn, was based solclv and exclusively on Oxford s

musrepresentations of fact

Oxford Automotive did not import articles from Mexico or Canada
hke or directly competitive with those produced at the Argos,
Indiana plant There was no shift in production from Argos,
Indiana, to Mexico or Canada Although some of the
machinery from the Argos plant had been moved to Mexico
and other foreign locations, the machinery was idle The
layoffs at the plant were attnibutanle to the customer s decision to
take back production of the side panels

{Oxford Record 11, p finsert ]} (Emphasis added)

64 In fact, bv October 19, 2001, defendants well knew that Oxford had shifted
production from Argos to Ramos Anzpe, Mexico and that Argos machnery, by then reinstalled
1 the Mexican plant for several months, was defimitelv not “udle but rather was being used daily

1n the same fashion and for the same purpose as 1t had peen used at Onford s Argos plant before

the shift of production to Mexico

1~



65 I'he Department of Labor filed 1ts remand determination with the U S Court of

International Trade on October 23 2001 (Oxford Record I, p [insert])

XVIH The Second Remand to the US Department of Labor
66 A year later, on October 24, 2002, the U S Court of Intemational Trade granted

the U S Department of Labor’s second consent motion for a voluntarv remand by an order of the

same date

XIX Defeadants’ Third Set of False Statements to the U S Department of Labor

67 In connection with the October 24, 2002 remand, Benedict C Ubamadu Oxford’s
General Motors business account manager with the knowledge and at the direction of defendants
John W Potter Tim Gargaro and Dennis Berus, m violation ot 18 US C § 1001 and Ind Code
§ 35-44-3-4(a)(4), contnued to assert falselv that the press line shipped from Argos to Oxford s
plant in Ramos Arizpe, Mexico “remained 1dle and that such equipment ‘ has never been used
to produce any product m Mexico * (Former Emplovees of Oaford Automotive, Inc v Unied
States, U S Court of Internattonal Trade No 01-00453, Second Supplemental Public
Administrative Record [hereafter referred to as © Oxford Record U] Table of Contents Fax
dated October 16, 2002 and electionic mail dated October 21 2002 from Benedict C Ubamaau,
Oxtord Automotive Troy, Michigan, responding to telephone calis duning October 2002 from
Fluott Kushner U S Depaitment of Labor (DOL), Division of Trade Adjustment Assistance
(DTAA), Concerming Subject Plant Product Codes and Clanficauon of the Shuft mn Plant
Equipment to Mexico)

68 Based on thus third set of muisrepiesentation of facts the Department of Labot
conunued its demal of Plamtfts” NAFTA-TAA peution m a ‘Notice of Negative Determination
on Reconsideration on Remand,” executed on October 31, 2002 and filed wath the Umited States
Court of International Trade on November 6, 2002, based on the following determination which,

1n turn was basad on Oxford s entirely false report of 1dle equipment’ that had ‘never peen used

18



to produce any product 1n Mexico”

The Department of Labor also contacted Oxford Automotive
regarding shitts m Argos plant equipment to Mexico during the
relevant period

The company wdicated that all production was phased out during
the vcar 2000 The company moved all press equipment to other
facthiies  The 180 Press Line went to Mexico m the Spring of
2001 Two other major presses (10 presses total and one blanking
press) also went to a Mexican facihitv duning the summer of 2002
The rest of the muscellaneous items went to other domestic Oxford
plants fiom 2001 through the current period  All equipment
shifted to Mexico remained dle The equipment has never
been used to produce any product 1a Mexico

(Onford Recoid IIL pp 57-60) (Cmphasis added)

XX  The Third Remand to the US Department of Labor

69 On October 2 2003, the U S Court ot Internanonal Trade granted the Argos
workers motion for judgment on the agency record and remanded the case tothc U S
Department of Labor for additional investigation of petitioners’ clauns that production of ike or

directly competitive products had been shifted from detendant Oxford s Argos, Indiana facility

to 1ts Ramos Anzpe, Mexico plant

XXY The US Department of Labor Certifies Plaintiffs for NAFTA-TAA

70 On Novemb.r 10, 2003 afier the third order of remand the U S Court of
International Trade had 1ssued to the Department of Labor the Department finally certihed
plaintfts as ehgible for NAFTA-TAA benefits in a “Notice of Ravised Detenmination on
Remand ° pubushed 1n the Federal Register on November 26 2003 winch finally undid
defendants thiee year campaign of falsehood over Oaford s shitt of production from Argos to s

new plant m Mexico

The petitioners alleged m the request for reconsideration
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that production equipment (180 press line and two single pot spot
welders) was sent to an affiliated plant located mn Mexico
Information provided by the company at that time mdicated
that while equipment was sent to Mexico, the equipment was
not used and there was no production shift. The Departiment
determined that the shift of production equipment, absent s use
was an insufficient basis for certification

On current remand, the Department followed the Court s
guidance m conducting its mvestigation obtaining new and
additional information, as well as clanfication, from the company
regarding the alleged production shifis to Mexico Upon careful
review of the new information, 1t has been determuned that a
significant portion of production of like and directly
rompetifive products nas shifted from the subject facilicy to
Mexico during the relevant period

Ceonclusion

Atter carefu] review of the additional facts obtamed on the
current remand, I conclude that there was a siuft of production
to Mexico of articles hike or ndirectly compefitive with these
produced at the subject {acitity In accordance with the Trade
Act, I make the following certification

All workers of Oxford Automotive Inc, Argos, Indiana who
became totally or partally separated trom employment on or after
Decembet 4, 1999, through two years fiom the issuance of this
revised determunation, are eiigible to apply for NAFTA-TAA
under section 250 of the Trade Act 0of 1974

(Former Emplovecs of Oxford 4utomotive Inc v United States U S Court of
Internanonal Trade No 01-00453 Thurd Supplemental Public Admuustrative

Record [heteafter referred to as Oxford Record IV’ ] reprinted at 68 Fed Reg
66,499 (Nov 26 2003)) (emphasts added)

71 Such provision of matenally false information w violation 0ot 18 US C § 1001
and Ind Code § 35-44-3-4(a)(4} mcludes per individual defendant (but, subject to discovery, 1s
not necessarilv hmited to), the following

(a) Bv virtue of his position as President and Chief Dxecutive Otfice: of

deferdan* Oxford from May 1997 to June 2001, defendant Steven M



Abelman was fully aware, and parucipated in decisions relating to

@) the closure of Oxfoid’s Argos Indiana facility

(1) the planning and construction of Oxford s Ramos Arzpe
Menico facility,

() the decision to move the 180-mch press line from Oxford s Argos
Indiana Facility to Oxfoid s Ramos Arnepe, Mexico facthity

(iv)  the decision to place the 180-inch press Iine mto immediate
production at Oxford’s Ramos Anzpe Mexico facility

(v)  theknowing, willful intentional, and fraudulent submission oy
defendants on or about December 4 to December 21, 2000 and
again on Januarv 4, 2001 to the Indiana Department of Workforce
Development and the U S Department of Labor of matenially false
information regarding defendant Oxford s plans for the 180-nch
press line bewng transferred trom Oxford s Argos, Indiana Faciuty
to Oxford » Ramos Arizpe Mexico Facility

(b) By virtue of hus position as President and Chief Executive Officer ot

defendant Onford Automotive Inc from June 2001 to January 2004,

defendant John W Potter was fully aware and participated 1n, decisions

relating to the knowing intenuonal willful and fraudulent submussion by

defendants on or around October 2002 to the U S Department of Labor of

matenally false information regarding defendant Oxford s use n

production of the 180-incn press line transterred from Oxford s Argos,

Indiana facihity to Oxford s Ramos Anzpe Mexico facihity

(c Bv virtue of his position as Execunve Vice Piesident and Chief Financial
Officer of Oxford Automotve Inc from June 2000 to July 2002 and as
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of defendant Onford

Automotive, Inc fiom June 1999 10 June 2000 defendant Auwiehian



(@

(e)

Bukatako was fully aware, and participated 1n, decisions relating to

1) the closure of defendant Oxford's Argos Indiana facihty,

(1) the planning and construction of Oxtord s Ramos Arizpe,
Mexico facility

(u1)  the decision to move the 180-inch press hine from Oxtford’s Argos
Inchana facihity to Oxford’s Ramos Arizpe, Mexico facility,

{rv)  the devision 1o place the 180-inch press line mto immediate
production at Oxford’s Ramos Anzpe, Mexico facility

(v)  theknowng, intentional willful, and fraudulent submussion by
defendants on or about December 4 to December 21, 2000 and
again on January 4 2001 o the Indiana Department of Workfoice
Development and the U S Department of Labor of matenally false
informanon regarding defendant Oaford s plans for the 180-inch
presshine being transferred from Oaford’s Argos, Indiana facihty to
Onford s Ramos Anzpe Menico factlity

By virtue of his position as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer of defendant Oxford Automotive Inc from July 2002 to June

2003, defendant Tun Gargaro was fully aware and paiticipated in

decisions relating to the knowing intentional willtul and fraudulent

submussion by defendants on or aiound October 2002 to the U S

Deparment of Labor of matenialiv false information regarding Oxtord »

use 1n production of the 180-inch press hine transferred from Onford s

Argos, Indiana facihity to Oxford s Ramos Arzpe Mexico fac by

By virtue of his position as Executive Vice President of Oxford

Automotive, Inc from May 2000 to May 2001, as Semor Vice President

Global Business Development from June 1999 to May 2000, and Semor

Vice President Sales and Engmeering from May 1997 to fune 1999
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detendant Larry C Comwall was fully aware, and participated 1n,

decisions relating to

(1) the closure of Oxford s Argos, Indiana facility,

(u) the planning and construction of Oxford’s Ramos Anzpe, Mexico
facility,

()  the decision to move the 180-inch press line from Oxtord s Argos
Indiana facthity to Onford s Ramos Anzpe Mexico facility,

(rv)  the decision to place the 180-inch press line mnto immediate
production at Oaford s Ramos Arnizpe, Mexico facility,

W the knowing, 1ntentional, willful, and fraudulent submission by
defendants on or about December 4 to December 21, 2000 and
agamn on January 4 2001 to the Indiana Department of Work force
Development and the U S Department of Labor of matenally false
mnformation regarding Oxtord's plans for the 180-inch press hne
bemng transferred from Oxford’s Argos, Indiana facinty to
Oxford s Ramos Anizpe Mexico facility

By virtue of hus position as Semor Vice President Human Resources of

Oxford Automotive Inc from August 2002 to date, Dennis Berus was

tully aware, and participated in, decisions relating to the knowing,

mntenuonal willtul, and fraudulent submussion by defendants on or around

October 2002 to the U S Department of Labor of matenally false

wformanon regarding Oxford s use 1n production of the 180-mnch press

line transferred from Oxford s Argos, Indiana facility to Oxford s Ramos

Arizpe, Mewco facility

As a result of has posinon as Corporate Director of Human Resources of

Oxford Automotive, Inc durng the trme-period relevant to this action,

Michacl ] Hartt, on his own account and on behalf and at the direction of
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Oxford s Steven M Abelman, Aurehan Bukatako, Larry C Comwall,

and Robert L Cluaravalli knowingly, intentionally, wilifully, and

fraudulently provided on or about December 4 to Decemoer 21, 2000 to

the Indiana Department of Workforce Development and on January 4,

2001 o the U S Department of Labor matenally false information

regarding Oxford s plans for the 180-inch press line veing wansferred

from Oxford s Argos, Indiana facility to Oxford’s Ramos Anzpe Menico

facility

By virtue of his position as Vice Piesident of Human Resources and Cluef

Labor Counsel of Oxford Automounve, Inc duning the time-penod relevant

to this action Robert L Cluaiavall; was fullv aware and participated in

decisions relating to

® the closure of defendant Oxford s Argos, Indiana facility

(1) the planning and construction of Oxford s Ramos Anzpe Mexico
facility,

{u1)  the decision to move the 180-1nch piess hne from Oxford s Argos,
Indiana facihity 1o Oxford s Ramos Arizpe, Mexico faclity

(1v)  the decision to place the 180-inch press hine nto immediate
production at Oxford s Ramos Arizpe, Mexico factlity

v the knowng, intennonal, willful, and fraudulent submission
defendants on or about December 4 to December 21 2000 and
agamn on January 4 2001 to the Indiana Department of Workforce
Development and the U S Department of Labor of matenally false
information regarding Oxford s plans for the 180-inch press hine
being mransferred from Oxford’s Argos, Inaiana facility to
Oxtord’s Ramos Anzpe Mexico tacuty

By virtue of lus position as General Motors Corp business account



manager Oxford Automotive, Inc from at least October 2002 unti] 2004,
Benedict C Ubamadu on lus own account and on behalf and at the
direction of Oxford s, John W Potter, Tun Gargaro and Dennis Bemus
knowingly, intentionally, willfully, and fraudulently provided on or
around October 2002 to the U S Department of Labor matenally false
mnformation regaramng Oxford’s use 1 production of the 180-inch oress
e transferred from Oxford’s Argos, Indiana facility to Oxford s Ramos
Anzpe, Mexico fautlitv

Count 1

(Fraud)

72 Paragraphs 1 to 71 are mcorporated

73 Bv their repeated misrepresentations of fact to federal and state agencies in
violation of 18 US C § 1001 and Ind Code § 35-44-3-4(a)(4) ar the very least, dcfendants
engaged 1n a civil consprracy to cormumt fiaud

74 Such iraud consisted of the defendants repeated faise statements that the Argos
Indiana press hne was idle, when 1t was not, and that no production of Argos had peen shifted to
Mexico when, m fact, such production had been shifted to Mexico to produce exactlv what
Onford’s Aigos plant had produced

75 Such false statements were matenal m that they caused the U S Department of
Labor and Indiana Department of Woikforce Development to withhold for some two years and
ten months NAFTA-Transittonal Adjustment Assistance to plamuffs, assistance plamuffs were
entitled to0 as of no later than January 24 2001

76 The defendants knew therr false staternents were material, because at all times
they were aware of fuderal and state programs connected with NAFTA and designed at least m
part. to avoid or reduce NAFTA s negative unpact on American workers

77 The Departments of Labor and Workforce Development, acting on behalf ot

pranutfs, reasonably relied on defendants repeated misrepresentations of fact, because such



defendants wers required bv law to speak truthfully about such matters, and because the
defendants had control over all acts that would or would not give nse to plamuffs’ entitlement to
such programs
78 Each of the plantitfs suffered serious mjury as a proximate result of defendants’
musrepresentations wn the form of,
(a)  permanently lost benefits otherwise available pursuant to 19 US C §§
2292-98 and Ind Code §§ 22-4-41-1, et seq ,
(b)  thedelay in receipt of other such bencfits with consequent economic
hardship and, as to delayed monetary payments, loss of mnterest
(c) decune 1n earning capacity as a proximate 1esult of such lost or delayed
benefits,
(d)  substantial mental and emotional distress as a proximate result of such lost
or delayed benefits
Count I¥
{Criminal Conversion)
79 Paragraphs 1 to 71 and 73 to 78 are incorporated
80 For pumoses of Ind Code § 35-43-4-3 the lost or delayed benefits refened to
above as mtangible enttlements established pursuant to federal and state legislation and
regulations are forms of property
81 Trom December 2000 through no earher than October 24, 2002, defendants
knowngly and mtentionally engaged in a repeated consistent and unmterrupted course of
uftering false statements to state and federal governments, as alleged above that had the effect of
destroving or suspending plamuffs receipt of the Transitional Adjustment Assistance benefits
referred to above and thereby converted them 1n violation of Ind Code § 35-43-4-3
82 As a proximare result of such conversion i addition to the damages plantiffs
have alleged 1n Count |, defendants, and each of them are habie, pursuvant to Ind Codc § 34-24-

3-1, for, among other things, an amount equal to three times the actual damages each of the

o
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plamti{Ts has wcurred plus plaintiffs’ reasonable attorneys tees

WHEREFORE, the named plaintiffs pray for judgment against Oxford Automotive Inc
and the named individual defendants, as follows

1 On Count [ for therr damages according to proof, mcluding interest on hiquidated
benefits to which each plaintitf was enutled

2 On Count II for damages according to proof, mcluding interest on hquidated

benefits to which each plamtiff was entitled, trebled and for reasonable attorneys fees

3 On both Counts for then costs of suit
4 For such other rehief as the court deems just
JURY DEMAND

Pursuant to Trial Rule 38, plainuffs request this matter be tried to a jury

TIHE HAMILTON LAW FIRM SCRKO & SIMON, LLP
Plaintiffs Liaison Counsel Plamuffs’ Lead Counsel
John C Harmulton {(7416-71) Joel K. Simon

300 N Michigan Street, Surte 420 Jerome L Hanifin
South Bend, IN 46601 1700 Broadway

(574) 289-9987 31st Floor

Facsimile (574) 289-8138 New York, NY 10019

(212) 775-0055
Facsimule (212) 839-9103

rd
N /Wi

Attoptie y4 for Plamtiffs ;\ztomcys tor Plarhtiffs




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
The undersigned attorney for plaintiffs certifies that he served a true and correct copy of
First Amended Complaint on the attorneys for the defendants by mailing a copy to
James M Lewis
Jody H Odell
Bames & Thornburg
100 N Michigan, Suite 600
South Bend, IN 46601

by United States Matl, postage prepaid December 10, 2004
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SERKO & SIMON LLP
CUSTOMS & INTERNATIONAL TRADE LAW
1700 BROADWAY
31°T FLOOR
NEW YORK, N Y 10019

TEL 212-775-0055 E-MAIL serko-s3imon@cus omrs-law com
FAX 212-839-9103 INTERNET WwWwWN customs-iaw com

New York — January 26, 2005
Mr Jeff Varsalone
Case Manager
BMC Cormp
1330 East Franklin Avenue
El Segundo, CA 90245

Re Proofs of Claim - Oxford Automotive, Inc

Dear Mr Varsalone,

Enclosed are notices of claim for 310 of our clients who filed a lawswit agamst Oxford
Automotive prior to the company’s bankruptcy filing The notices of claim also cover any “retirement
benefits” as defined m 11 U S C § 1141(a) that my clients may be entitled too We have spoken with
Ms Andrea Schrepfer, who asked us to include this cover letter with our mailing, asking you to “scan
and 1mage” the enclosed Complant as documentation for all 310 proofs-of-claim  The Complaint 1s
referenced on each of the 310 proofs of claim We have also sent to you a second package, which 1s
1dentical with the exception that the proofs of claim are against Lobdell Emery Corporation We ask
that you scan the 1dentical complant for each of those 310 proofs of claim as well (Total of 622
notices of claim)

Finally, we are also mailing to you proofs of claim agamst Oxford Automotive, Inc and
Lobdell Emery Corporation on behalf of our law firm, regarding costs and fees associated with the
lawsuit

We have forwarded the FedEx tracking numbers for this shipment by email to Ms Schrepfer
per her request If the package fails to reach you, please contact us immediately

We are enclosing an additional copy (third) of each proof-of-claim Per our conversations with
Ms Schrepfer, we ask that you please stamp each third copy of the proofs of claim (agaimst Oxford and
Lobdell), and return them to us in by using the enclosed FedEx mnvoice

If anything should occur which requires our assistance, please do not hesitate to contact my
associate Rob DeCamp or myself at 212-775-0055 Thank you for your attention to this matter

Sincerely,

SERKO & SIMON LLP /
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/’Iérome L Hanifin
Enclosures
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